
 
 
 

Area Planning Committee (North) 
 
 
Date Thursday 25 July 2024 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Council Chamber, County Hall, Durham 

 
 

Business 
 
 

Part A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held on 28 March 2024  (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Declarations of Interest (if any)   

5. Applications to be determined;   

 a) DM/24/00715/FPA - Williams Garage, Front Street, Grange 
Villa, Chester-le-street, DH2 3LJ  (Pages 9 - 18) 

  Remove current front brick wall to front and erection of 2.5 
metre v mesh fencing around site with accompanying gates. 

6. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chair of the 
meeting, is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration.   

 
 
 

Helen Bradley 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
County Hall 
Durham 
17 July 2024 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
To: The Members of the Area Planning Committee (North) 

 
 Councillor E Peeke (Chair) 

Councillor W Stelling (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors G Binney, J Blakey, L Brown, K Earley, J Griffiths, 
D Haney, A Jackson, B Moist, J Purvis, K Shaw, A Sterling, 
A Watson and S Wilson 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact: Paula Nicholson Tel: 03000 269710 

 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE (NORTH) 
 

At a Meeting of the Area Planning Committee (North) held in the Council 
Chamber, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 28 March 2024 at 9.30 am 

 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor E Peeke (Chair) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors G Binney, J Blakey, L Brown, J Griffiths, P Jopling, J Purvis, A Sterling 
and S Wilson 
 
Apologies: 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors W Stelling, K Earley, 
D Haney, B Moist, K Shaw and A Watson 
 
Also Present: 

  

 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors W Stelling, K Earley, 
D Haney, B Moist, K Shaw and A Watson. 
 

2 Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitutes.  
 

3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 January 2024 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest  
 
Councillor A Sterling declared an interest in the agenda item as a local 
member. She would speak on the application and then withdraw from the 
meeting during the consideration of the application.  
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



5 Applications to be determined;  
 

a DM//23/00870/OUT - Land To The South Of Greenways Court, 
Greenways, Delves Lane, DH8 7DH  

 
The Committee considered a report of the Senior Planning Officer that was 
an outline application (with access) for up to 32 no. affordable residential 
units and 8 no. self-build/custom build plots (all other matters reserved) on 
land to the South of Greenways Court, Delves Lane, DH8 7DH (for copy see 
file of minutes).   
 
S Henderson, Senior Planning Officer gave a detailed presentation that 
included a site location plan, a wider site location plan, site photographs and 
the proposed layout of the site.  He explained that the outline application was 
for up to 32 affordable residential units and 8 self-build/custom build plots on 
green space. A significant housing development of 288 dwellings had been 
approved immediately to the southeast of the site.  Upon consultation there 
were no objections from the Coal Authority and Northumbrian Water. NHS 
NE and Cumbria had no objections but subjected the application to a 
financial contribution of £19,320 to provide additional capacity.  The 
application was also subject to a financial contribution of £82,770 for 
secondary teaching but not for primary education.  There were no objections 
from the Lead Local Flood Authority but they required suds and a drainage 
strategy to be imposed. There had been 112 notifications of objection and 1 
neutral notification with the main reasons for objection being that there would 
be a loss of open space that was used as a recreational facility, there was 
already a development for housing nearby underway, there would be the 
impact of further construction work that was directly overlooked by a 
residential care home, there would be traffic congestion and there would be 
an impact on wild life. There were good transport links and pedestrian access 
to shops but it was officer’s recommendation to refuse the outline application 
as the development would result in the loss of open space of recreational 
and visual amenity value and it was contrary to policies 6, 25, 26, 29, 31 and 
39 of the County Durham Plan and Paragraph 11 of the NPPF. 
 
Councillor A Sterling, local Councillor addressed the committee in objection 
to the planning application. She stated that it was a small piece of land that 
was vital to the community as it was the last piece of grassed space in the 
village.  She had submitted a letter of context that proposed that the 
significant housing development that had started at the south of the area 
provided sufficient housing.  She felt that there was no further demand for 
housing therefore the additional houses were not necessary or warranted.  
The village green provided a vital service for recreational purposes where 
children played and dog owners walked their dogs.  It was an integral part of 
the community.   
 

Page 4



She added that there was a legal and moral obligation to leave the green 
space unspoiled due to the restrictive covenant that restricted any new 
development to be built on the land.  The covenant was included in the sale 
of the houses nearby and had been acknowledged by Hilary Armstrong MP.  
The land had been purchased for £1,000 which would increase in value with 
the sale of the proposed properties but the loss of the green space would be 
a blow to the village.  Residents would have gladly paid for the land had they 
known the intentions.  She implored the committee to heed the voices of 
residents and honour the heritage for generations to come to refuse the 
application. 

 
Councillor A Sterling left the meeting at 10am. 

 
Mr S Smith, local resident addressed the committee in objection to the 
application.  He commented that he had lived in the village for 35 years and 
there was a strength of feeling within the community to protect the land as 
this was the second attempt that residents had to ward off attacks to destroy 
their green space within the village in 24 months.  He stated that the first was 
an application for 280 units that had been granted that was underway by 
Miller Homes. It was an attack on the heart of the community who used the 
green space.  There were 119 objections to the application and only one in 
support.  He thanked planning officers who had recommended that the 
application come to committee. The green space was used by children who 
played sports in a safe environment and residents who walked their pets.  
This would cease if the application was approved.  There was huge value on 
the green space for both resident’s physical and mental health which was 
vital during lockdown throughout the Covid pandemic.  
 
He added that the green space was important to all residents.  He informed 
the committee that there was a covenant on the land not to build that was at 
the forefront of resident’s objections that had been in place in 1962 when the 
Coal Authority transferred the land to the local authority which was confirmed 
by Hilary Armstrong MP in 1994.  The covenant was enshrined on the field in 
the sale of properties in the area.  If residents had known the intentions of the 
developer, they would have paid for the field to ensure there was no future 
development on the land.  To remove the green space was unacceptable as 
the application would increase the number of houses in the area but would 
add strain on the local area as there would be no increase in the number of 
services or the school size which had not changed for 60 years.  There was 
nothing in the application that showed evidence that there was a need for 
such houses.  He respectfully asked members on behalf of himself and other 
residents that the application be refused.  
 
 
 
 

Page 5



Mr G McGill, agent for the applicant addressed the committee in support of 
the application.  He clarified some discrepancies that had been included in 
the press.  In terms of the layout he explained that although the application 
was outline the design was made to work not that it would ‘probably work’. 
There was no major wildlife on site that would be impacted.  The land was 
stable and the outline application would be reflective of Delves Lane even at 
a detailed stage.  The application would include affordable housing and 
although limited there would still be open space.  He noted that Durham was 
the worst area to meet affordable housing needs with huge waiting lists for 
properties.  The housing needs assessment measured how successful the 
market was for houses that was emphasised by the Miller Homes site in the 
vicinity as young people could not get on to the housing ladder.  He felt that a 
planning report would be written positively if a development was required in 
an area but negatively if there was not a need.  He felt that this report had 
focused on the negative aspects.  In the planning balance there was an 
unmet need for affordable housing which this application would contribute 
towards.  He stated that there was no need to submit a viability assessment 
as the value was in the need for affordable housing to meet the unmet need.  
The Council cut the grass that involved maintenance costs and he felt that 
the land was not well used as he had not seen many people on it.  The 
development was not for profit and asked members to be minded to approve 
the application.  
 
The Chair opened up the committee to questions and debate. 
 
Councillor P Jopling had analysed the report and on first thoughts the outline 
planning application seemed to be satisfactory as an infill plot.  However she 
had attended the site visit and found the area to be densely populated by 
houses.  She noted that the area had been identified as the last piece of 
green open space available in the community which all the residents needed 
more than ever. She felt that the developer had an ample design but it should 
be delivered elsewhere.  The developer had taken a chance with this land 
due to the restrictive covenant.  The land was in the vicinity of a residential 
care home which she felt the self-build units on the development would 
cause indefinite disruption as they would take so long to complete. She did 
not think it was a bad planning application but it was in the wrong area.  She 
did not want to go against the officer’s recommendation and supported the 
refusal of the application.  
 
Councillor S Wilson acknowledged that there was a need for affordable 
housing.  He was aware of the restrictive covenant but this was not material 
in planning applications and he had given no weight to it.  He felt it was rare 
that someone described amenity space as preserved for residents and the 
community.  He recognised the level of harm that would be caused if the land 
was developed.   

Page 6



There were houses being developed nearby that would provide affordable 
housing but had also contributed to the lack of open space in the area.  He 
encouraged the developer to work at a different site.  He agreed with the 
officer’s recommendation and moved to refuse the application.  
 
Councillor L Brown asked the agent why they felt the need to omit a viability 
statement that was required by policy 25 of the County Durham Plan. She 
stated that in marketing the houses would bring a profit for the developer of 
between 15-20%.  She understood the benefit of affordable housing that was 
in huge shortage but not at the expense of profit.  
 
Mr G McGill responded to Councillor L Brown that they had not submitted a 
viability statement as it would show that the development would not be 
affordable, would not be profitable and it would not stack up financially. 
 
Councillor L Brown remarked that a viability statement was a requirement of 
policy 25.  She asked highways if it was just parking that they had issues with 
regarding the application.    
 
D Smith, Principal DM Engineer replied to Councillor L Brown and pointed 
out that the application was only outline and any highways issues could be 
resolved at a later stage.  He did mention that highways had requested 
vehicle tracking when the application was submitted which had not been 
provided to the correct technical standards necessary by the applicant to 
date.  Parking layout issues could be determined at a later stage in the 
process if the outline application was approved.  
 
Councillor L Brown queried how many affordable homes would be provided 
on the Miller Homes site. 
 
The Senior Planning Officer confirmed that the Miller Homes site would 
provide 10% affordable housing. 
 
Councillor L Brown stated that given the position of the information she also 
agreed with the officer recommendation and seconded the application to be 
refused.  
 
Councillor J Blakey was saddened that developers came in with infill plots 
that built on every green space. She commented that there was no green 
space left in her village for children to play safely.  The green space had a 
value to the residents which she appreciated and supported the application 
to be refused. 
 
 
 

Page 7



L Dalby, Principal Planning Officer confirmed for Councillor L Brown that 
there would be 29 units for affordable housing on the Miller Homes site. He 
also stated that there was a slight amendment to the report that on grounds 
for refusal in the recommendations the development would fail to make 
financial contributions necessary to mitigate the impact of the development 
on local education and healthcare facilities contrary to Policy 25 of the 
County Durham Plan and Part 4 of the National Policy Planning Framework.  
He stressed that this would not affect any deliberations that had occurred 
during the meeting. 
 
Upon a vote being take it was unanimously: 
 
Resolved: 
 

That the application be REFUSED. 
 
 
 

Page 8



 
  

Planning Services 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 

 

APPLICATION DETAILS 
 

Application No:    DM/24/00715/FPA 
 
Full Application Description: Remove current front brick wall to front and 

erection of 2.5 metre v mesh fencing around 
site with accompanying gates 

 
Name of Applicant: Mr Grant Owens 
 
Address: Williams Garage, Front Street, Grange Villa, 

Chester-le-street, DH2 3LJ  
 
Electoral Division:    Pelton 
 
Case Officer:     Leigh Dalby (Principal Planning Officer) 
      Tel: 03000 261389 
      Email: leigh.dalby@durham.gov.uk 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND PROPOSAL 

 
The Site 
 
1.  The application site is located to the south west of the settlement of Grange 

Village which is in the north of County Durham. The site itself relates a business 
which operates as a show room selling vehicles adapted for wheelchair users. 
It contains a detached show room building to the rear of the site and a sales 
forecourt which is made of hard standing to the front.  
 

2.  The application site has residential dwellings to the north, west and east which 
are either detached bungalows or two storey terraces. To the south is the local 
working men’s club and an area of green open space. Access to the site is 
currently facilitated by two access points with gates onto Front Street to the 
south.  
 

3. The site is not listed nor within a conservation area.  
 

The Proposal 
 

4.  Planning permission is sort for the removal of the existing brick wall which acts 
as a boundary treatment to the site to be replaced with a 2.5 metre v mesh 
fence with accompanying gates in the same position as the current access 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5a



points to the site, along with the addition of 0.8m high v mesh fencing to the 
existing side elevation wall to a height of 2.4m. 
 

5.  The application is being reported to planning committee at the request of Pelton 
Parish Council due to concerns regarding the aesthetics of the proposed mesh 
fence.  
 

PLANNING HISTORY 

 
6.  Planning permission was granted in 2014 for the change of use of the site from 

communal rooms to the current car forecourt under reference 
DM/14/03788/FPA.  
 

7.        In 2020 retrospective planning permission was given for the erection of a timber 
structure for car care purposes associated with the business under 
DM/20/02559/FPA following this DM/23/03120/FPA granted planning 
permission for the increase in roof height of this structure as a sales showroom. 

 

PLANNING POLICY 
 

National Policy 
 

8.  A revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in July 
2018 (with updates since). The overriding message continues to be that new 
development that is sustainable should go ahead without delay. It defines the 
role of planning in achieving sustainable development under three overarching 
objectives – economic, social and environmental, which are interdependent and 
need to be pursued in mutually supportive ways. 
 

9.  NPPF Part 2 Achieving Sustainable Development - The purpose of the planning 
system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and 
therefore at the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. It defines the role of planning in achieving sustainable 
development under three overarching objectives - economic, social and 
environmental, which are interdependent and need to be pursued in mutually 
supportive ways. The application of the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development for plan-making and decision-taking is outlined. 
 

10.  NPPF Part 4 Decision-making - Local planning authorities should approach 
decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative way. They should 
use the full range of planning tools available, including brownfield registers and 
permission in principle, and work proactively with applicants to secure 
developments that will improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every level should seek to approve 
applications for sustainable development where possible. 
 

11.  NPPF Part 9 Promoting Sustainable Transport - Encouragement should be 
given to solutions which support reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and 
reduce congestion. Developments that generate significant movement should 
be located where the need to travel will be minimised and the use of sustainable 
transport modes maximised. 
 

Page 10



12.  NPPF Part 12 Achieving Well-Designed Places - The Government attaches 
great importance to the design of the built environment, with good design a key 
aspect of sustainable development, indivisible from good planning. 

 
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework 

 
National Planning Practice Guidance: 

 
13.  The Government has consolidated a number of planning practice guidance 

notes, circulars and other guidance documents into a single Planning Practice 
Guidance Suite. This document provides planning guidance on a wide range of 
matters. Of particular relevance to this application is the practice guidance with 
regards to; flood risk; healthy and safe communities and highway safety. 

 
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance  

 
Local Plan Policy: 
 
The County Durham Plan (CDP) 
 
14. Policy 6 (Development on Unallocated Sites) states the development on 

sites not allocated in the Plan or Neighbourhood Plan, but which are either 
within the built-up area or outside the built up area but well related to a 
settlement will be permitted provided it: is compatible with use on adjacent land; 
does not result in coalescence with neighbouring settlements; does not result 
in loss of land of recreational, ecological, or heritage value; is appropriate in 
scale, design etc to character of the settlement; it is not prejudicial to highway 
safety; provides access to sustainable modes of transport; 
retains the settlement’s valued facilities; considers climate change implications; 
makes use of previously developed land and reflects priorities for urban 
regeneration. 
 

15.  Policy 21 (Delivering Sustainable Transport) requires all development to deliver 
sustainable transport by: delivering, accommodating and facilitating investment 
in sustainable modes of transport; providing appropriate, well designed, 
permeable and direct routes for all modes of transport; ensuring that any 
vehicular traffic generated by new development can be safely accommodated; 
creating new or improvements to existing routes and assessing potential 
increase in risk resulting from new development in vicinity of level crossings. 
Development should have regard to Parking and Accessibility Supplementary 
Planning Document. 

 
16.  Policy 29 (Sustainable Design) requires all development proposals to achieve 

well designed buildings and places having regard to SPD advice and sets out 
18 elements for development to be considered acceptable, 
including: making positive contribution to areas character, identity etc.; 
adaptable buildings; minimising greenhouse gas emissions and use of non-
renewable resources; providing high standards of amenity and privacy; 
contributing to healthy neighbourhoods; and suitable landscape 
proposals. Provision for all new residential development to comply with 
Nationally Described Space Standards, subject to transition period.  
 

Page 11

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/national-planning-policy-framework
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance


17.  Policy 31 (Amenity and Pollution) sets out that development will be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable impact, either 
individually or cumulatively, on health, living or working conditions or the natural 
environment and that they can be integrated effectively with any existing 
business and community facilities. Development will not be permitted where 
inappropriate odours, noise, vibration and other sources of pollution cannot be 
suitably mitigated against, as well as where light pollution is not suitably 
minimised. Permission will not be granted for sensitive land uses near to 
potentially polluting development. Similarly, potentially polluting development 
will not be permitted near sensitive uses unless the effects can be mitigated. 

 
18.  Residential Amenity Standards SPD (2020 Adopted version) – Provides 

guidance on the space/amenity standards that would normally be expected 
where new dwellings are proposed. 
 

https://www.durham.gov.uk/cdp  
 
Neighbourhood Plan: 

 
19.  The application site is not located within an area where there is a 

Neighbourhood Plan to which regard is to be had. 
 

CONSULTATION AND PUBLICITY RESPONSES 

 
Statutory Consultee Responses: 
 
20.  Highways Authority – Advise that the proposed development is not predicted to 

have a material impact on the operation of the local highway network and 
cannot be reasonably considered as ‘severe’ within the context of the NPPF 
and therefore no objections are raised. 
 

21.      Pelton Parish Council - The Parish Council raise concern about the aesthetics 
of a mesh fence on the Front Street and would like to object to the planning 
application and ask for the application to be ‘called-in’. A Parish Councillor will 
attend the Planning Committee Meeting on behalf of the Parish Council. 

 
Public Responses: 

 
22.  Neighbouring residents have notified by individual notification letters no written 

representations have been received.  
 
 

PLANNING CONSIDERATION AND ASSESSMENT 

  
23.      As identified in Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 the key consideration in the determination of a planning application is the 
development plan. Applications should be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The main 
considerations in regard to this application are the principle of the use in this 
location, highway safety, and visual and residential amenity. 
 

Page 12

https://www.durham.gov.uk/cdp


24.      Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF is a material planning 
consideration. The County Durham Plan is the statutory development plan and 
the starting point for determining applications as set out at Paragraph 12 of the 
NPPF. The NPPF advises at Paragraph 213 that the weight to be afforded to 
existing Local Plans depends upon the degree of consistency with the NPPF. 
 

25.      The Local Plan was adopted in 2020 and is up to date. Consequently, 
consideration of the development should be led by the plan if the decision is to 
be defensible. 

 
Principle of Development 

 
26.  The site is within the built-up area of Grange Villa and is surrounded by 

residential properties. Policy 6 of the CDP supports development within built up 
areas where they are, amongst other less relevant criteria, compatible with 
surrounding uses, appropriate in terms of design, not prejudicial to highway 
safety and sustainably located for transport. These issues are covered later in 
the report. 
 

27.     Paragraph 85 of the NPPF states that “Planning...decisions should help create 
the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt. Significant 
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and 
productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider 
opportunities for development.” 
 

28.  The proposal is for the erection of 2.5 metre v mesh boundary treatment to the 
site where the current use as a showroom is already established. The 
development would safeguard current employment at the site it has a positive 
economic knock-on effect and therefore the proposal gains positive support in 
this respect in principle. 
 

29.   It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of Policy 6 of 
the County Durham Plan and Para. 85 of the NPPF in supporting business in 
the economic growth, subject to the following material planning considerations. 

 
Highway Safety 

   
30.     Policy 6 of the County Durham Plan sets out that development should not be 

prejudicial to highway safety.  Policy 21 of the CDP requires that all 
development ensures that any vehicular traffic generated by new development 
can be safely accommodated and have regard to Parking and Accessibility 
Supplementary Planning Document 
 

31. Part 9 of the NPPF requires that applications for development should create 
places that are safe, secure and attractive – which minimise the scope for 
conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street 
clutter, and respond to local character and design standards.  Furthermore Part 
9 outlines that development should only be prevented or refused on highways 
grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the 
residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe. 

 

Page 13



32.  The Council's Highways Officer has reviewed the proposals and consider the 
proposed development to satisfy the requirements in relation to highway safety 
and therefore have no objections. 

 
33.  In line with the advice of the Highways Authority it is considered that the 

proposal does not   affect highway safety, according with Policies 6 and 21 of 
the County Durham Plan and Part 9 of the NPPF. 
 

Visual and Residential Amenity  
 

34. Policy 6 of the CDP sets out that development will only be permitted where it is 
appropriate in terms of scale, design, layout and location to the function form of 
the settlement.   
 

35.      Policy 29 of the County Durham Plan sets out that development should 
contribute positively to an areas character, townscape and landscape features 
to create and reinforce locally distinctive and sustainable communities. 
 

36.      Policy 31 (Amenity and Pollution) sets out that development will be permitted 
where it can be demonstrated that there will be no unacceptable impact, either 
individually or cumulatively, on health, living or working conditions or the natural 
environment and that they can be integrated effectively with any existing 
business and community facilities. Development will not be permitted where 
inappropriate odours, noise, vibration and other sources of pollution cannot be 
suitably mitigated against, as well as where light pollution is not suitably 
minimised. Permission will not be granted for sensitive land uses near to 
potentially polluting development. Similarly, potentially polluting development 
will not be permitted near sensitive uses unless the effects can be mitigated. 

 
37. Part 12 of the NPPF seeks to promote good design of developments that are 

sympathetic with their surroundings  
 

38. The local Parish Council has raised an objection on the grounds that there are 
concerns about the aesthetics of the mesh fence on the front street.  
 

39.     The application site is located within Front Street which is considered to be the 
main thoroughfare through Grange Villa leading towards the larger settlement 
of Pelton to the East.  Front Street consists of various commercial business 
interspersed amongst residential properties.  The immediate vicinity to the 
application site consists of residential uses to the North, East and West  along 
with a large social / working men’s club to the South. 
 

40.      It is considered that the is no single identifiable design characteristic to the 
streetscene in this location, with traditional red brick terrace house to the west, 
a recently converted former civic building to a dwelling finished in render, with 
a high wall and fence boundary treatment, and the social club which has been 
finished use varying designs to the main building and later additions.   
 

41.      The proposed 2.5 metre v mesh fencing is a relatively standard type of security 
fencing for commercial businesses to provide effective security measure and 
boundary treatment. The existing brick/stone boundary treatment to the front is 
in poor condition and small in height, which does not provide any security for 

Page 14



the business, nor is considered to contribute positively to the site or the wider 
area.  
 

42.      The proposed fence is by virtue of its lightweight construction, diaphanous in 
its nature allowing visibility into the site, whilst providing the necessary 
robustness to allow the business to be suitably secured. It is proposed that a 
condition be added requiring confirmation of the colour of the fence in order to 
secure a pallet appropriate for the local vernacular can be achieved.   
 

43.      Due to the nature of the development, the proposed boundary treatment is not 
considered to result in a negative impact upon the amenity of neighbouring 
properties or those in the surrounding area. 
 

44. Overall, it is considered that the development has not impacted on the character 
or appearance of the surrounding area, in accordance with Policies 6, 29 and 
31 of the County Durham Plan and Part 12 of the NPPF.   

 
 

CONCLUSION 

 
45.  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 

determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. The CDP is an up to date development plan. 
Paragraph 11 of the NPPF establishes a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. For decision taking this means approving development proposals 
that accord with an up-to-date development plan without delay (paragraph 11 
c). 
 

46.      As detailed above, paragraph 85 of the NPPF states that “Planning...decisions 
should help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and 
adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic 
growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs and 
wider opportunities for development.”  In this regard it is considered that the 
security fencing is necessary to support the building to grow, and provide 
economic benefits to the local area and county through employment and as 
such acceptable. 
 

47. The area does not have any definable character and is within an existing missed 
use area of commercial / residential uses. In this respect the proposed 
boundary treatments is considered to not adversely affect highway safety, the 
visual amenity of the surrounding area or the residential amenity or any nearby 
residential properties. or any nearby residential properties. Therefore, the 
proposal is considered to accord with relevant policies of the County Durham 
Plan and the NPPF.  
 

48.      The objections and concerns raised have been taken into account and 
addressed within the report. However, on balance the concerns raised were not 
considered sufficient to justify refusal of this application. There are no material 
considerations which indicate otherwise and therefore the application is 
recommended for approval.  
 
 

Page 15



RECOMMENDATION  
 

That the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission.   
 
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in strict accordance 
with the approved plans listed in Part 3 - Approved Plans. 
 
 
Reason: To define the consent and ensure that a satisfactory form of 
development is obtained in accordance with Policy 6, 21, 29 and 31 of the 
County Durham Plan and Parts 2, 4, 9 and 12 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 

 
3. Notwithstanding any details of materials submitted with the application no 

development shall commence until details of the colour of the proposed 
fence have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The development shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details.  

 
Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the area and to comply with 
Policy 29 of the County Durham Plan and Part 12 of the National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF PROACTIVE ENGAGEMENT 

 
In accordance with Article 35(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, the Local Planning Authority has, 
without prejudice to a fair and objective assessment of the proposals, issues raised 
and representations received, sought to work with the applicant in a positive and 
proactive manner with the objective of delivering high quality sustainable development 
to improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of the area in 
accordance with the NPPF. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Submitted Application Forms, Plans and supporting documents 
National Planning Policy Framework 
The County Durham Plan (CDP) 
Residential Amenity Standards Supplementary Planning Document 2020 
Statutory consultation responses 
 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
Planning Services  
 

Erection of new boundary treatment  

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material 
with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of 
Her majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown copyright.  
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright 
and may lead to prosecution or civil proceeding.  
Durham County Council Licence No. 100022202 2005  

 

Comments   

Date: 5th June 2024  

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 28 March 2024
	5a DM/24/00715/FPA - Williams Garage, Front Street, Grange Villa, Chester-le-street, DH2 3LJ

